
PLANNING COMMISSION 

 

AGENDA 

October 27, 2015 

1



CITY OF OAK HARBOR AGENDA 
PLANNING COMMISSION October 27, 2015 
REGULAR MEETING 7:30 P.M. 
CITY HALL 

ROLL CALL: WASINGER  FREEMAN 

PETERSON   SCHLECHT 

PICCONE  PIERCE 

WALKER-WYSE 

1. Approval of Minutes – September 22, 2015

2. Public Comment – Planning Commission will accept public comment for items not
otherwise on the agenda for the first 15 minutes of the Planning Commission meeting.

3. 2015 COMPREHENSIVE PLAN AMENDMENT:
• 2016 – 2021 CAPITIAL IMPROVEMENT PLAN – Public Hearing
• 2015 COMPREHENSIVE PLAN AMENDMENTS: RECOMMENDATION TO CITY

COUNCIL
The Planning Commission will conduct a public hearing on the 2016-2021 Capital 
Improvement Plan.  The Capital Improvement Plan identifies necessary capital projects 
to serve the community such as streets, waterlines and sewer lines. The Planning 
Commission will also forward their recommendations to the City Council on all of the 
2015 amendments which includes the Capital Improvements Plan and a sponsored 
amendment for a land use change from Low Density Residential to Medium Density 
Residential for 3 lots on SW 3rd Avenue. Public hearing on the land use change was 
conducted on August 25, 2015. 

4. 2016 COMPREHENSIVE PLAN UPDATE – Public Meeting
Staff will provide an update on the progress of the 2016 Comprehensive Plan update.
The major scope of the 2016 Comprehensive Plan update includes updates to the Land
Use Element, Housing Element and the Transportation Element.

2

Page 10

Page 113



MINUTES 

 

September 22, 2015 

3



 

Planning Commission 
September 22, 2015 

Page 1 of 2 

PLANNING COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 
CITY HALL – COUNCIL CHAMBERS 
September 22, 2015 
 
ROLL CALL:  Present: Greg Wasinger, Bruce Freeman, Sandi Peterson and Cecil Pierce  
 Absent: Mike Piccone, Jes Walker-Wyse and Ana Schlecht 

Staff Present:  Senior Planners, Cac Kamak and Dennis Lefevre; Associate 
Planner Ray Lindenburg  

 
Chairman Wasinger called the meeting to order at 7:30 p.m.  
 
MINUTES: MR. PIERCE MOVED, MS. PETERSON SECONDED, MOTION CARRIED TO 

APPROVE THE AUGUST 25, 2015 MINUTES AS PRESENTED. 
 
MARITIME ZONING ORDINACE – Public Hearing 
Mr. Kamak displayed a PowerPoint presentation (Attachment 1) and reviewed the background 
behind the ordinance, how the ordinance was formulated and the adoption process.  Mr. Kamak 
recommended that the Planning Commission conduct the public hearing and forward a 
recommendation to the Planning Commission. 
 
Mr. Wasinger opened the public hearing for public comment. None present for comment. 
Hearing none the public hearing was closed. 
 
Planning Commission Discussion  
The Planning Commission asked if the regulations would affect the existing businesses and live-
aboards in the Maritime Zoning District. Mr. Kamak said neither wouldn’t be affected since 
established businesses are not building new structures and the live-aboards are not on land. 
There was discussion about the lack of public transportation in the Maritime Zoning District.  
There was a suggestion to use the word “shall” instead of “may” in the second to last sentence 
in Section 19.20.930(6).  Mr. Kamak pointed out that inserting “shall” would require parking 
regardless of the use while the conditional use process allows the flexibility to mitigate or 
address potential impacts that a use can have on the district and other uses.  Planning 
Commissioners agreed to keep the language as is. 
 
ACTION: MR. FREEMAN MOVED, MS. PETERSON SECONDED MOTION CARRIED TO 

RECOMMEND THAT THE CITY COUNCIL APPROVE THE MARITIME 
ZONING DISTRICT REGULATIONS AS STATED. 

 
WIRELESS FACILITIES MODIFICATIONS – Public Hearing 
Mr. Lefevre reported that this code amendment responds to the “Spectrum Act” which mandates 
that local governments approve, and cannot deny, an application requesting modification of an 
existing tower or base station is such modification does not substantially change the physical 
dimensions of such tower or base station.  The purpose of this act is to facilitate and expedite 
the deployment of equipment and infrastructure to meet the demand for wireless capacity. 

Mr. Lefevre stated that an amendment creating Chapter 19.30 titled “Wireless Facilities 
Modifications” accommodates the Spectrum Act’s requirements.  New Chapter 19.30 
establishes application submittal requirements, permit classification, timing for permit review, 
and the approval process.    
 

4



 

Planning Commission 
September 22, 2015 

Page 2 of 2 

Mr. Wasinger opened the public hearing for public comment. None present for comment. 
Hearing none the public hearing was closed. 
 
ACTION: MS. PETERSON MOVED, MR. FREEMAN SECONDED MOTION CARRIED TO 

RECOMMEND THAT THE CITY COUNCIL APPROVE DRAFT ORDINANCE 
1744. 

 
2016 COMPREHENSIVE PLAN UPDATE – Public Meeting 
Mr. Wasinger stated that Mr. Kamak informed him that there is no new information to report at 
this time.  
 
ADJOURN: 8:00 p.m. 
 
Minutes submitted by: Katherine Gifford 

5



ATTACHMENT 1

ZONING REGULATIONS

MARITIME DISTRICT

9/24/2015

Planning Commission

Maritime 

Land Use 

Designation

BACKGROUND

•Land Use designation was added in

2012

•Opportunity for maritime industrial

and commercial uses

•Support the Marina Redevelopment

Plan

Maritime Uses .   The City created this land use in 2012 to accommodate 
high intensity water related and water dependent commercial and 
industrial uses.   This land use category and the Marit ime designation in 
the Shoreline Master Program have similar intent .   This land use 
would accommodate uses such as boat bui lding, sai l  making, water 
dependent transpor tation ware housing and other clean industr ial  
uses .   This land use also accommodates commercial  uses similar to 
the uses that  are allowed in the Central Business District .   The 
commercial uses are intended to draw residents and visitors to the 
area and enjoy the recreat ional facil it ies provided by the marina, 
Catalina Park and the Maylor Point  t rail .   Commercial and industrial 
uses in this area wil l  need to be sufficiently screened from each 

other.   The Marit ime Land Use should consider flexible standards for 
streets and parking as an incentive to foster development in the 
area. One of the major challenges in creat ing this land use category is 
the intersect ion of Pioneer Way, Catalina Drive and the security gate to 
the Seaplane Base.  Since the proposed land uses in this area has the 
potent ial to generate traf fic,  creat ive solut ions wil l  need to be sought 
to address this issue.  Creat ing flexible parking standards in this area 
is also intended to encourage the public to use the access provided by 
the water front  t rail  with alternative modes of transportation .  

MARITIME LAND USE MARITIME ORDINANCE

Borrowing from the Shoreline Master Program

•Water-dependent uses

•Water-related uses

•Water-enjoyment uses

•Development standards

6



ATTACHMENT 1

MARITIME ORDINANCE

Borrowing from the Central Business District

•Less parking-intensive uses

•Development standards

•No parking requirements

•Limits on parking when provided

•Setback, lot area etc

MARITIME ORDINANCE

Conditions governing all uses

•Clean – no discharge, odors, noise etc.

•Landscaping standards

•Clean storage/warehousing

•SMP review

MARITIME ORDINANCE

Conditional uses

•Conference Center

•Hotel/motel

•Primary Utilities

Prohibited Use

•Residential Uses

• Input and comment from the Marina Advisory Committee (Jan 

2015) 

• Notification to Department of Commerce (July 2015)

• SEPA Checklist and Determination(August 2015)

• Public Hearing before the Planning Commission (Sept 2015)

• Action by City Council(Oct/Nov 2015)

MARITIME ORDINANCE

ADOPTION PROCESS

7



ATTACHMENT 1

3

MARITIME ORDINANCE

Action

•Conduct Public Hearing

•Recommendation to City Council

8



2015 

Comprehensive Plan 

Amendments 

Public Hearing 

9



 City of Oak Harbor 
Planning Commission 

Date:  October 27, 2015 
Subject: 2015 Comprehensive 

Plan Amendments 

FROM:    Cac Kamak, AICP 
Senior Planner 

PURPOSE  
This memo presents the 2015 Comprehensive Plan Amendments.  The amendments include land 
use changes for three properties on SW 3rd Avenue (R13203-488-4830, R13203-488-4940, and 
R13203-488-5060) from Low Density Residential to Medium Density Residential and updates to 
the Capital Improvements Plan (CIP).   

The Planning Commission is requested to conduct a public hearing at the October 27th meeting 
and take public testimony.  The Planning Commission is expected to make a recommendation to 
the City Council on the amendments.      

FISCAL IMPACT DESCRIPTION 
Oak Harbor’s Comprehensive Plan includes several elements such as Utilities, Transportation, 
Economic Development, Capital Facilities etc. that includes policies and improvements system 
wide that have fiscal impacts.  This year’s amendments do not include changes that add any 
fiscal impacts.  The Capital Improvements Plan was updated to adjust the schedules and costs but 
have not been amended to add any projects.  The Comprehensive Plan and the CIP are 
“planning” documents and inclusion of project and policies in these documents do not directly 
relate to immediate fiscal impacts.  When the budget is adopted for the city, certain projects from 
the Comprehensive Plan and the CIP may be chosen for implementation based on the resources 
avalable.  That is when funds are programmed for planning, design and construction.  The 

The Land Use Map amendment for the three properties on SW 3rd Avenue is not anticipated to 
have any immediate fiscal impacts to the City. 

BACKGROUND 
The City Council approved the docket for the 2015 Comprehensive Plan Amendments on March 
3, 2015.  The docket included an update to the Capital Improvements Plan, Land Use change for 
three properties on SW 3rd Avenue and the incorporation of the Facility Plan for the Wastewater 
Treatment Facility.   

Land use changes for three properties on SW 3rd Avenue (R13203-488-4830, R13203-488-
4940, and R13203-488-5060) - Low Density Residential to Medium Density Residential 
This is a sponsored application requesting a change to the land use.  The Planning Commission 
held a public hearing on this item at its July 28, 2015 meeting.  Please refer to the July 28th report 

10



 City of Oak Harbor 
Planning Commission 

 
to Planning Commission for details on this amendment and the criteria based evaluation in 
accordance with OHMC 18.15.080.  The Planning Commission voted to recommend approval of 
this land use change.  
 
Capital Improvements Plan 2016-2021 –  
The Capital Improvements Plan (CIP) has been amended annually to reflect the most recent 
revenue and expenditure projections.  The format of various funds within the CIP was changed in 
2014 to better track projects and their schedule by incorporating project expenditures and 
revenues sources in the same table to ensure that adequate funds exist to implement a project at 
the prescribed time.  The 2015 update has minor changes to some revenues and schedules.  
However, no new projects have been added as part of this years update.  There are no policy 
changes to the CIP this year. 
 
Tables for the various funds have been attached for your review.  To limit printing of the entire 
document, especially since policies have not been amended this year, only the tables for the 
various funds that lists the projects over the next six years have been attached to this report.  To 
view the entire document please visit the following link:  
 
Facility Plan for the Wastewater Treatment Plant 
Though the incorporation of the Facility Plan for the Wastewater Treatment Plant was approved 
as part of the 2015 Comprehensive Plan docket, staff recommends that it be done in conjunction 
with the adoption of the 2016 Update to the Comprehensive Plan.  Staff is working on an 
organization chart for the Comprehensive Plan and will help with the incorporation for plans 
such as these.   
 
DISCUSSION 
The Future Land Use Map Amendments for the properties on SW 3rd Avenue were previously 
reviewed against the Comprehensive Plan review criteria established in OHMC 18.15.080, as 
shown in the Planning Commission reports that are attached to this report.  The Capital 
Improvements Plan 2016-2021 is reviewed against the criteria below. 
 
Comprehensive Plan Review Criteria  
In accordance with OHMC 18.15.080 the Planning Commission shall review and make a 
recommendation on the CIP 2016-2021 to the City Council based on the criteria listed below. 
 
(1) The amendment will not adversely affect the public health, safety and welfare in any 

significant way. 
The proposed CIP and related amendments will not adversely affect the public health, 
safety and welfare.   Projects in the CIP are scheduled based on need identified in 
approved plans and are intended to serve the public needs and improve health, safety and 
welfare.   
 

(2) The proposed amendment is consistent with the overall goals and intent of the 
comprehensive plan. 
The proposed CIP and schedule of projects are intended to implement the goals and 

11



 City of Oak Harbor 
Planning Commission 

 
intent of approved Plans and are therefore consistent with the existing goals and policies 
of the Comprehensive Plan.  .  
 

(3) The amendment is in compliance with the Growth Management Act and the Countywide 
Planning Policies. 
The amendments are in compliance with the Growth Management Act and the 
Countywide Planning Polices.  The Capital Improvements Plan includes projects from 
other adopted plans.  
  

(4) The amendment addresses the needs or changing circumstances of the community as a 
whole or resolves inconsistencies in the city’s comprehensive plan. 

 The amendments to the Capital Improvements Plan reflect the ongoing changes to 
projects and schedules based on budget, permits or other related issues. The Capital 
Improvements Plan 2016-2021 has been generated by taking into account the changing 
circumstances within the community and based on available resources. 
  

(5) Environmental impact from the amendments have been addressed through the SEPA 
review and /or measures have been included that reduce possible impacts. 
A SEPA checklist has been prepared for the amendments.  No significant environmental 
impacts have been identified with the adoption of the amended CIP.  However, projects 
that are in the CIP may have environmental impacts and mitigation.  Each individual 
project will have a separate SEPA review and impacts will be addressed on a project by 
project basis. 
 

(6) The amendment is consistent with the land uses and growth projections which were the 
basis of the comprehensive plan or to subsequent updates to growth allocations. 
The projects within the CIP have their source in adopted Plans that are based on the 
projected population growth and allocations.  Therefore there are several projects in the 
CIP that are intended to address level of service issues which is primarily related to land 
use and population growth. 
 

(7) The amendment is generally compatible with neighboring land uses and surrounding 
neighborhoods. 
The CIP document and its adoption do not create any land use changes.  However, there 
may be individual projects within the CIP that may have to address compatibility during 
permitting and design process.  These will be dealt on a project by project basis. 
 

(8) The proposed amendment accommodates new policy direction from the city council. 
The amendments to the CIP update include decisions made by the City Council during 
the course of the year.   
 

(9) Other specific criteria that may have been identified as the beginning of the process. 
No special criteria were identified as the beginning of the process to consider this year’s 
amendments. 

 

12



 City of Oak Harbor 
Planning Commission 

 
RECOMMENDATIONS 

• Conduct public hearing on the CIP 2016-2021 and recommend its approval.   
• Forward a recommendation to the City Council on the adoption of the 2015 

Comprehensive Plan Amendments that include updates to the Capital Improvements Plan 
(CIP) and amends the Future Land Use Map to designate three properties on SW 3rd 
Avenue (R13203-488-4830, R13203-488-4940, and R13203-488-5060) from Low 
Density Residential to Medium Density Residential.   

 
 
ATTACHMENTS 

1. Planning Commission Report – Land Use change for properties on SW 3rd Avenue 
(R13203-488-4830, R13203-488-4940, and R13203-488-5060) from Low Density 
Residential to Medium Density Residential 

2. Planning Commission minutes – July 28, 2015 
3. Capital Improvements Plan 2016-2021 (Tables only)  

 
 

13



 

CITY OF OAK HARBOR PLANNING COMMISSION 

TO: PLANNING COMMISSION 

FROM: CAC KAMAK, SENIOR PLANNER 

SUBJECT: COMPREHENSIVE PLAN AMENDMENT - LAND USE CHANGE – 185 SW 

3RD AVENUE AND ADJACENT PARCELS (R13203-488-4830, R13203-348-

4940 AND R13203-488-5060) 

DATE: JULY 27, 2015 

CC: STEVE POWERS, DEVELOPMENT SERVICES DIRECTOR 

  

 

PURPOSE: 

This memo addresses the land use change requested by Valley High Investments Incorporated for 

three properties located south of SW 3
rd

 Avenue and west of Oak Harbor Road (Attachment 1).  

The request was made as part of the 2015 Comprehensive Plan Amendment process.     

 

PROCESS: 

The process to amend the Comprehensive Plan is regulated by OHMC Chapter 18.15.  This land 

use amendment was added to the preliminary docket in 2015 as a sponsored amendment and 

approved by the City Council on March 3, 2015.  Public notification on the project will be in 

accordance to the requirements set forth in OHMC Section 18.20.380(5).  The land use change 

along with the other comprehensive plan amendments will be reviewed by the applicable criteria 

established under OHMC Section 18.15.080.   

 

BACKGROUND 

Valley High Investments Incorporated owns two properties along SW 3
rd

 Avenue.  One property 

(185 SW 3
rd

 Ave) has a single family residence on it, and the other is vacant.  The properties are 

each approximately 44,000 square feet in area and are substantially larger than the 7,200 square 

feet minimum lot size requirements in the current R-1 Single Family Residential District.  Valley 

High Investments Incorporated believes that these properties can be developed to a higher density 

and has therefore requested a land use change.  To the east of the properties owned by Valley 

High Investments is a single parcel owned by the Oak Harbor School District (OHSD) that is also 

currently vacant of structures and has an access road into the Oak Harbor Middle School.  The 

OHSD does not have any change in plans for their property, however, Valley High Investments 

Incorporated has included the property in the requested change since it creates a better transition 

to the High Density Residential designated along Oak Harbor Road to the east (see attachment 2 

Land Use Map).  The OHSD is aware of Valley High Investments request for the land use change 

and is not opposed to their inclusion in this amendment (see Attachment 3 – letter). 

 

DISCUSSION 

Site Characteristics 

The properties are mostly flat and are devoid of any sudden slope changes. As mentioned above, 

there is a single family residence on the western most property of the three included in the 

request.  The property to the west is a church (Assembly of God), and the church’s parsonage is 

adjacent to the single family residence on the applicant’s property. To the north and across the 

street is also a church (First Reformed Church).  To the east, the properties are developed with 

ATTACHMENT 114



2 
 

multifamily residential structures along Oak Harbor Road.  Oak Harbor Middle School lies south 

of the subject properties.  

 

Sewer and water are available to the properties from SW 3
rd

 Avenue.  SW 3
rd

 Avenue is primarily 

a two lane asphalt street with ditches on either side for drainage.  The south side of SW 3
rd

 Ave 

has sidewalks on the south side adjacent to the property.   

 

 
 

 

Review Criteria 

OHMC Section 18.15.080 establishes the criteria to review annual amendments to the 

Comprehensive Plan were the criteria are applicable.  The criteria and their review are provided 

below. 

 

(1) The amendment will not adversely affect the public health, safety and welfare in any 

significant way. 

The amendment requested will increase the allowed density of the property from 3-6 

units per acre to 3-12 units per acre.  This increase in density is not uncharacteristic of 

this area that has high density residential uses immediately adjacent to the east.  The other 

uses surrounding the properties are two churches and a school which would be minimally 

impacted from the increased density.  The proposed amendment and increase in density is 

well suited to take advantage of the utilities and services that are adjacent to these 

properties.  Therefore, the proposed amendment will not adversely affect the public 

ATTACHMENT 115



3 
 

health, safety and welfare.  

 

(2) The proposed amendment is consistent with the overall goals and intent of the 

comprehensive plan. 

The proposed change will allow a higher density residential development in this area.  

This change is supported by goals and policies in the Comprehensive Plan that support 

infill development and encourage a mix of housing types.  This location is served by city 

utilities and is near many services such as retail, groceries, home improvement stores, 

schools etc.  The location also serves as an ideal transition from high density to the east to 

low density to the west.  The location for this change is further enhanced due to the 

location of churches adjacent to the subject properties that provide a break and a 

transition from the subject properties to other low density residential uses to the west.       

 

(3) The amendment is in compliance with the Growth Management Act and the countywide 

planning policies. 

The proposed change to the land use designation does not create any inconsistencies with 

the Growth Management Act or the County Wide Planning Policies.  In fact, it is 

supported by the Act and the CWPP that support infill development and higher densities 

where infrastructure is already available.   

 

(4) The amendment addresses the needs or changing circumstances of the community as a 

whole or resolves inconsistencies in the city’s comprehensive plan. 

The amendment does not resolve any inconsistencies.  However, the amendment can be 

seen as addressing the needs of changing circumstances because by supporting higher 

densities within the city limits where urban services are already available, it reduces the 

need for seeking land in the fringes of the city where utilities need to be extended.  It is 

fair to say that increasing the density, where appropriate, within the city is generally a 

better option than seeking UGA boundary changes and is highly encouraged by GMA 

and the CWPP.  

 

(5) Environmental impacts from the amendments have been addressed through SEPA review 

and/or measures have been included that reduce possible impacts. 

There are no immediate environmental impacts from the land use change.  However, 

development of the property will need to meet the requirements of Oak Harbor’s 

Municipal Code and may require a SEPA review.  Any impacts can be addressed at the 

time of development.  Since similar uses are accommodated in both designations, 

environmental impacts will not be significantly different due to the change. 

   

(6) The amendment is consistent with the land uses and growth projections which were the 

basis of the comprehensive plan or to subsequent updates to growth allocations. 

The proposed amendment to increase the density is consistent with land use and growth 

projections.  The City is aware that NAS Whidbey will have an increase in personal due 

to the increase in squadrons.  Therefore, increasing the density in areas where services are 

available will help with providing additional housing options for the increase in 

population. 

 

 

ATTACHMENT 116



4 
 

(7) The amendment is generally compatible with neighboring land uses and surrounding 

neighborhoods. 

The proposed amendment is compatible with the neighboring land uses and creates a 

good transition from the high density multifamily uses to the east to the low density 

residential uses to the west.  The transitions are further enhanced with location of 

churches adjacent to the subject properties.   

 

(8) The proposed amendment accommodates new policy direction from the city council.  

This is not applicable for this change since it does not address a new policy direction. 

 

(9) Other specific criteria that may have been identified at the beginning of the process.  

 Not applicable. 

 

From the above review, it can be determined that there will not likely be adverse impacts from 

changing the land use designations for the property from Low Density Residential to Medium 

Density Residential.    

 

RECOMMENDATION 

 Conduct Public Hearing 

 Recommend amending the Future Land Use Map designation for the subject properties 

from Low Density Residential to Medium Density Residential. 

 

ATTACHMENTS 

1. Location Map 

2. Land Use Map 

3. OHSD Letter 

4. Application 

ATTACHMENT 117



Ha
wth

orn
e P

ark

SR 20

SW
 3R

D A
VE

W 
WH

IDB
EY

 AV
E

SW
 6T

H A
VE

SW FAIRHAVEN DR

SW
 1S

T A
VE

SW DYER ST

S OAK HARBOR ST

SW
 4T

H A
VE SWERIEST

SE
 3R

D A
VEE W

HID
BE

Y A
VE

SW
 2N

D A
VE SW

 EC
HO

 LO
OP

SE ATLAS ST

SW CRUISE ST

SW ER I E
CI

R

SW DISCOVERY ST

SW ESTON CT

SW FESTIVAL CT

NWBOSUNST

SW
 6T

H A
VE

SW
 6T

H A
VE

SW
 2N

D A
VE

0
25

0
50

0
12

5
Fe

et

µ

Va
lle

y H
igh

 In
ve

stm
en

t P
rop

ert
ies

Va
lle

y H
igh

 In
ve

stm
en

t P
rop

ert
ies

OH
SD

 Pr
op

ert
y

Proposed Land Use Change ATTACHMENT 1

ATTACHMENT 118



ATTACHMENT 2

ATTACHMENT 119



ATTACHMENT 3

ATTACHMENT 120



ATTACHMENT 4

ATTACHMENT 121



ATTACHMENT 122



ATTACHMENT 123



ATTACHMENT 124



ATTACHMENT 125



ATTACHMENT 126



ATTACHMENT 127



ATTACHMENT 128



ATTACHMENT 129



ATTACHMENT 130



ATTACHMENT 131



ATTACHMENT 132



ATTACHMENT 133



ATTACHMENT 134



ATTACHMENT 135



ATTACHMENT 136



ATTACHMENT 137



ATTACHMENT 138



ATTACHMENT 139



ATTACHMENT 140



ATTACHMENT 141



ATTACHMENT 142



ATTACHMENT 143



ATTACHMENT 144



ATTACHMENT 145



ATTACHMENT 146



ATTACHMENT 147



ATTACHMENT 148



ATTACHMENT 149



ATTACHMENT 150



ATTACHMENT 151



ATTACHMENT 152



ATTACHMENT 153



ATTACHMENT 154



ATTACHMENT 155



ATTACHMENT 156



ATTACHMENT 157



ATTACHMENT 158



ATTACHMENT 159



ATTACHMENT 160



ATTACHMENT 161



ATTACHMENT 162



ATTACHMENT 163



ATTACHMENT 164



ATTACHMENT 165



ATTACHMENT 166



ATTACHMENT 167



ATTACHMENT 168



ATTACHMENT 169



ATTACHMENT 170



ATTACHMENT 171



ATTACHMENT 172



ATTACHMENT 173



ATTACHMENT 174



ATTACHMENT 175



ATTACHMENT 176



ATTACHMENT 177



ATTACHMENT 178



ATTACHMENT 179



ATTACHMENT 180



ATTACHMENT 181



ATTACHMENT 182



ATTACHMENT 183



ATTACHMENT 184



ATTACHMENT 185



ATTACHMENT 186



ATTACHMENT 187



ATTACHMENT 188



ATTACHMENT 189



ATTACHMENT 190



ATTACHMENT 191



ATTACHMENT 192



ATTACHMENT 193



ATTACHMENT 194



ATTACHMENT 195



ATTACHMENT 196



ATTACHMENT 197



ATTACHMENT 198



ATTACHMENT 199



ATTACHMENT 1100



 

Planning Commission 
July 28, 2015 

Page 3 of 4 

ACTION: MR. FREEMAN MOVED, MS. WALKER-WYSE SECONDED, MOTION 
CARRIED TO RECOMMEND THAT THE CITY COUNCIL EXTEND THE 
EXISTING MEDICAL MARIJUANA MORATORIUM ORDINANCE NO. 1692 AN 
ADDITIONAL ONE YEAR UNTIL SEPTEMBER 1, 2016.   

 
TELECOMMUNICATION INFRASTRUCTURE – Public Meeting 
Mr. Lefevre reported that this item is an effort to bring our code current with federal legislation 
“Middle Class Tax Relief and Job Creation Act of 2012”. Section 6409 of this Act (a.k.a. the 
“Spectrum Act”) mandated that “local governments approve, and cannot deny, an application 
requesting modification of an existing tower or base station if such modification does not 
substantially change the physical dimensions of such tower or base station.” The purpose of this 
act is to facilitate and expedite the deployment of equipment and infrastructure to meet the 
demand for wireless capacity. 

Mr. Lefevre explained that our current code establishes location and options for wireless 
facilities and focuses primarily on the construction of new facilities. The current code permits 
collocation of wireless facilities on existing structures but does not provide an expedited 
application and review process nor provide for mandatory approval if specific criterion are met.    
 
Mr. Lefevre stated that an amendment creating Chapter 19.30 will establish application 
submittal requirements, permit classification, timing for permit review, and the approval process. 
Following adoption of this amendment, Development Services staff will prepare an application 
based on the new Chapter 19.30 guidelines and requirements. Staff will also amend Schedule A 
of the Master Fee Schedule to include this application and review fee. 
 
Planning Commission Discussion 
Planning Commissioners asked that the fee schedule be shared with them once the fee has 
been determined.   
 
COMPREHENSIVE PLAN LAND USE AMENDMENT – Public Hearing 
Mr. Kamak displayed a PowerPoint presentation (Attachment 2) and summarized the 
Comprehensive Plan amendment process, review criteria, location and site characteristics of 
the subject properties.  Mr. Kamak reported that this a is a sponsored amendment to change the 
land use designation from Low Density Residential to Medium Density Residential for three 
properties located south of SW 3rd Avenue and West of Oak Harbor Road.  Mr. Kamak noted 
that two of the properties are owned by Valley High Investments Incorporated and the third 
property is owned by the Oak Harbor School District.  The school district was contacted by 
Valley High Investments and the school district has no objection to their inclusion in the land use 
designation amendment. 
 
Mr. Kamak recommended that the Planning Commission conduct a public hearing and forward 
a recommendation to the City Council to amend the Future Land Use Map designation of the 
subject properties from Low Density Residential to Medium Density Residential. 
 
Planning Commission Discussion 
Planning Commissioners asked about the school district’s plan for their property.  Mr. Kamak 
stated that there was no proposal for the school district property.    
 
The public hearing was opened at 8:59 p.m. There were no comments. 
 
 
 

ATTACHMENT 2101

gifford
Highlight

gifford
Highlight



 

Planning Commission 
July 28, 2015 

Page 4 of 4 

ACTION: MS. PETERSON MOVED, MR. PIERCE SECONDED, MOTION CARRIED TO 
RECOMMEND THAT THE CITY COUNCIL AMMEND THE FUTURE LAND 
USE MAP DESIGNATION OF THE SUBJECT PROPERTIES FROM LOW 
DENSITY RESIDENTIAL TO MEDIUM DENSITY RESIDENTIAL. 

 
The public hearing was closed at 9:05 p.m. 
 
2016 COMPREHENSIVE PLAN UPDATE – Workshop 
Mr. Kamak displayed a PowerPoint presentation (Attachment 3) which presented a review of the 
land use map, current land use designations, associated zoning districts and neighborhoods.  
The Planning Commission discussed and considered a generalized land use map which would 
simplify policies, allow rezoning within the same land use categories, would not be dependent 
on land use changes and would not impact the current zoning classification or the development 
potential.  Planning Commission also discussed forming districts categorized by character, style, 
layout, location, approximate similar era, predominant land use and mix of uses and similar 
uses. 
 
Planning Commissioners were supportive of the idea of using a generalized land use map and 
district categories. 
 
Mr. Kamak said that the next step will be to present this to the City Council at their next 
workshop.  Within the next couple of Planning Commission meetings there should be a structure 
for the land use element.  
 
ADJOURN: 9:45 p.m. 
 
Minutes submitted by: Katherine Gifford 

ATTACHMENT 2102



2015 COMPREHENSIVE 

PLAN AMENDMENT 
SW 3RD AVENUE 

FROM LOW DENSITY RESIDENTIAL TO MEDIUM 

DENSITY RESIDENTIAL 

7/28/2015 

Planning Commission 

Public Hearing 

Background 
Request includes 3 properties

Two owned by Valley High

Investments

Third owned by OHSD

OHSD not opposed

Planning 

Co mmiss ion  

SW 3RD 

AVE 

Site Characteristics 

Existing single family

residence

Surrounded by two churches,

school and multifamily

Relatively flat

Utilities available

Sidewalk
Planning 

Co mmiss ion  

SW 3RD 

AVE 

LOCATION MAP 
 

N
o

rt
h

 

LOCATION MAP 

 

N
o

rt
h

 

Church 

Church 

School 

Multi-

Family 

Review Criteria 

Public health, safety and welfare

Consistent with the
Comprehensive Plan

Compliance with GMA and CWPP

Changing needs or resolves
inconsistencies

Environmental impacts

Consistent with growth and
population

Compatible with surrounding
uses

Accommodates new policy – n/a

Other specific criteria

Planning 

Co mmiss ion  

SW 3RD 

AVE 

ATTACHMENT 2

ATTACHMENT 2103



2 

Suggested action 

Consistent with criteria

Hold public hearing

Recommend approval to CC

Planning 

Co mmiss ion  

SW 3RD 

AVE 

ATTACHMENT 2

ATTACHMENT 2104



DRAFTP:\PROJECTS\City Projects\CIP GS51-07-15 (til superseded XFR)\2016-2021 CIP\Copy of CIP tables 2016-2021 rev3a.xlsx  Page 1

Printed 10/15/2015

Table 4.3. Streets  (Non-Enterprise Funded)

2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021
Local Street Overlays $2,650,000 $0 $500,000 $500,000 $550,000 $550,000 $550,000
Bayshore Drive Extension 3,500,000 0 0 0 3,500,000 0 0
Whidbey Avenue Crosswalk 224,500 224,500 0 0 0 0 0
Waterfront Trail (Veterans' Park) 150,000 150,000 0 0 0 0 0
Heller Street Overlay (Whidbey to Crosby) 345,000 0 0 0 345,000 0 0
W. Pioneer/City Beach/Bayshore Intersection 200,000 $0 $0 $200,000 $0 $0 0
Pedestrian Access Improvements 638,000 0 114,000 122,000 128,000 134,000 140,000
Capital Project Expenditures $7,707,500 $374,500 $614,000 $822,000 $4,523,000 $684,000 $690,000

Revenue Sources 6-Year Total 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021
Contributions from Beginning Fund Balance:

 Streets (Fund 101) $1,714,916 $0 $378,810 $586,106 $250,000 $250,000 $250,000
 Arterials (Fund 104) 300,000 0 0 0 100,000 100,000 100,000
Transportation Capital Improvements (Fund 105) 600,000 0 0 0 200,000 200,000 200,000

Transportation Impact Fees 217,631 34,500 35,190 35,894 36,612 37,344 38,091
REET 1 (50% of annual) 525,000 87,500 87,500 87,500 87,500 87,500 87,500
REET 2 (50% of annual) 525,000 87,500 87,500 87,500 87,500 87,500 87,500
Motor Vehicle Fuel Tax: Non-operating 150,000 25,000 25,000 25,000 25,000 25,000 25,000
General Fund 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Grants 3,083,750 374,500 0 0 2,709,250 0 0
Other City Funds 500,000 0 0 0 500,000 0 0
Developer Contributions 1,000,000 0 0 0 1,000,000 0 0
Total Available Revenue $8,616,297 $609,000 $614,000 $822,000 $4,995,862 $787,344 $788,091

Total Revenues less Total Capital Expenditures $908,797 $234,500 $0 $0 $472,862 $103,344 $98,091

Notes:
moved crosswalk and trail to 2016
crosswalk and trail are fully funded by grants

Projects Total Project 
Costs

ATTACHMENT 3105



DRAFTP:\PROJECTS\City Projects\CIP GS51-07-15 (til superseded XFR)\2016-2021 CIP\Copy of CIP tables 2016-2021 rev3a.xlsx

Table 4.4 Parks and Recreation (Non-Enterprise Funded)

2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021
Windjammer Park

Lagoon Bridge $150,000 $150,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
Splash Park 250,000 0 0 250,000 0 0 0
Existing Building Replacements 195,000 0 0 0 120,000 75,000 0
  RV Park 2,500,000 0 0 2,500,000 0

Baseball Field Relocation/Planning/Design/Const 1,625,000 0 0 125,000 1,500,000 0 0
Land Acquisition 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Open Space Land Acquisition Near Ft. Nugent Park 250,000 0 250,000 0 0 0 0
Future Park 250,000 0 250,000 0 0 0 0
Future Park 1,500,000 0 0 1,500,000 0 0 0

Total Capital Expenditures $6,720,000 $150,000 $500,000 $4,375,000 $1,620,000 $75,000 $0

Revenue Sources 6-Year Total 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021
Contributions from Beginning Fund Balance

Neigh. Parks (Fund 125) $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
Comm. Parks (Fund 126) 50,000 0 0 50,000 0 0 0

Park Impact Fees 387,951 61,500 62,730 63,985 65,265 66,570 67,901
REET 1 (50% of annual) 525,000 87,500 87,500 87,500 87,500 87,500 87,500
REET 2 (50% of annual) 525,000 87,500 87,500 87,500 87,500 87,500 87,500
Paths and Trails 16,085 2,550 2,601 2,653 2,706 2,760 2,815
General Fund 895,000 0 500,000 200,000 120,000 75,000 0
Grants 5,500,000 0 0 4,000,000 1,500,000 0 0
Developer Contributions 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Total Available Revenue $7,899,036 $239,050 $740,331 $4,491,638 $1,862,971 $319,330 $245,716

Total Revenues less Total Capital Expenditures $1,179,036 $89,050 $240,331 $116,638 $242,971 $244,330 $245,716

Notes:
$1,500,000 future park funded by grant
$250,000 splash park funded by general fund
$120,000 & $75,000 building replacement funded by general fund
$1,500,000 baseball field relocation funded by grant

Projects Total Project 
Costs

ATTACHMENT 3106



DRAFTP:\PROJECTS\City Projects\CIP GS51-07-15 (til superseded XFR)\2016-2021 CIP\Copy of CIP tables 2016-2021 rev3a.xlsx

Table 4.5 Wastewater System (Enterprise Funded)

2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021
Wastewater Treatment Plant $82,893,627 $31,163,643 $51,729,984 $0 $0 $0 $0
Wastewater Treatment Plant - Outfall 800,000 800,000 0 0 0 0 0
Biosolids Removal (Lagoon Treatment Facility) 587,000 0 0 587,000 0 0
Sewer Line Replacements 1,030,000 150,000 170,000 170,000 180,000 180,000 180,000      
SW 6th Ave & Erie St Line Replacement 150,000 150,000 0 0 0 0 0
Ely St Line Replacement 250,000 250,000 0 0 0 0 0
NE 9th to Taftson Line Installation 250,000 250,000 0 0 0 0 0
Downtown Area Restrooms 750,000 0 0 250,000 250,000 250,000 0
Capital Project Expenditures $86,710,627 $32,763,643 $51,899,984 $1,007,000 $430,000 $430,000 $180,000

Revenue Sources 6-Year Total 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021
Contribution from Beginning Fund Balance

Sewer (Fund 402) $1,563,059 $250,000 $0 $715,793 $136,369 $460,897 $0
Cumulative Reserve (Fund 412) 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

System Development Charges 630,812 100,000 102,000 104,040 106,121 108,243 110,408
Trunk Line Fees 104,084 16,500 16,830 17,167 17,510 17,860 18,217
Rates 1,563,500 433,500 420,000 170,000 180,000 180,000 180,000
Loans 31,963,643 31,963,643 0 0 0 0 0
Grants 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Revenue Bond Proceeds 51,729,984 0 51,729,984 0 0 0 0
Total Available Revenue $87,555,082 $32,763,643 $52,268,814 $1,007,000 $440,000 $767,000 $308,625

Total Revenues less Total Capital Expenditures $844,455 $0 $368,830 $0 $10,000 $337,000 $128,625

Notes:
$13,372,073 plant funded by $8,260,000 loan, bond proceeds and rates
$2,958,387 outfall funded by 3,2000,000 loan, bond proceeds and rates-update cost?
$17,790,735 and $51,729,984 plant funded by bond proceeds

Projects Total Project 
Costs

ATTACHMENT 3107



DRAFTP:\PROJECTS\City Projects\CIP GS51-07-15 (til superseded XFR)\2016-2021 CIP\Copy of CIP tables 2016-2021 rev3a.xlsx

Table 4.6 Water System (Enterprise Funded)
Total Project 

Costs 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021
Well No. 9 Replacement (S-1) $251,000 $0 $251,000 $0 $0 $0 $0
Deception Pass 10-inch Main Hanger Replacement $120,000 $120,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
Emergency Supply Study (S-2) 109,000 0 0 0 109,000 0 0
Ault Field Booster Station Surge Protection Analysis (BS-1) 46,000 0 46,000 0 0 0 0
Ault Field Booster Station Surge Protection Const. (BS-1) 208,000 0 0 0 208,000 0 0

0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Steel/AC line replacement (DS-9)- NE 4th 407,000 407,000 0 0 0 0 0
Steel/AC line replacement (DS-9)- NE 11th 316,000 316,000 0 0 0 0 0
O'Leary St. Water Main (PZ-1) 636,000 0 636,000 0 0 0 0
North O'Leary St. Water Main (PZ-2) 527,000 0 527,000 0 0 0 0
Telemetry upgrades wells/west tank 55,000 0 0 55,000 0 0 0
Cross City Transmission Main (T-1A) 1,751,000 0 0 0 1,751,000 0 0
Emergency Supply Well (S-4) 64,000 0 0 0 0 64,000 0
West 384 Zone Development (PZ-4) - design 71,000 0 0 0 0 0 71,000
Steel/AC line replacement (DS-9) - design 160,000 0 0 0 0 160,000 0
Telemetry upgrades wells/web viewing 54,000 0 0 0 0 54,000 0
NE Regatta Drive Pipeline (DS-1) 127,000 0 0 0 127,000 0 0
Eastside Reservoir Demolition (S-3) 110,000 0 0 110,000 0 0 0
Steel/AC line replacement (DS-9) - construction 929,000 0 0 0 0 929,000 0
Develop emergency well supply (S-4) 280,000 0 0 0 0 0 280,000
West 384 Zone development (PZ-4) - construction 294,000 0 0 0 0 294,000 0
Glencoe Street Fire Flow Improvements (DS-2) - design 217,000 0 0 0 0 0 217,000
West 384 Zone Extension: Phase 1 (T-3) 3,015,000 0 0 3,015,000 0 0 0
Capital Project Expenditures $9,747,000 $843,000 $1,460,000 $3,180,000 $2,195,000 $1,501,000 $568,000

Revenue Sources 6-Year Total 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021
Contributions from Beginning Fund Balance

Water (Fund 401) $1,271,746 $308,000 $200,000 $200,000 $200,000 $200,000 $163,746
Cumulative Reserve (Fund 411) 750,000 150,000 150,000 150,000 150,000 150,000 0

System Development Charges 1,167,000 185,000 188,700 192,474 196,323 200,249 204,254
Rates 1,350,000 200,000 350,000 200,000 200,000 200,000 200,000
Loans 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Grants 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Revenue Bonds 5,974,953 0 636,000 2,487,526 1,498,677 1,352,750 0
Developer Contributions 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Total Available Revenue $10,513,699 $843,000 $1,524,700 $3,230,000 $2,245,000 $2,102,999 $568,000

Total Revenues less Total Capital Expenditures $766,699 $0 $64,700 $50,000 $50,000 $601,999 $0

Projects

ATTACHMENT 3108



DRAFTP:\PROJECTS\City Projects\CIP GS51-07-15 (til superseded XFR)\2016-2021 CIP\Copy of CIP tables 2016-2021 rev3a.xlsx

Table 4.7 Stormwater System (Enterprise Funded)

2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021
Scenic Heights (Liszak) Outfall $155,000 $155,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
Capital Project Expenditures $155,000 $155,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

Revenue Sources 6-Year Total 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021
Contributions from Beginning Fund Balance

Stormwater (Fund 404) $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
Cumulative Reserve (Fund 414) 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Rates 155,000 155,000 0 0 0 0 0
Loans 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Grants 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Developer Contributions 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Total Available Revenue $155,000 $155,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

Total Revenues less Total Capital Expenditures $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

Notes:
moved liszak to 2016

Total Project 
CostsProjects

ATTACHMENT 3109



DRAFTP:\PROJECTS\City Projects\CIP GS51-07-15 (til superseded XFR)\2016-2021 CIP\Copy of CIP tables 2016-2021 rev3a.xlsx

Table 4.8 General Government 

2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021
New West Side Fire Station $4,000,000 $0 $4,000,000 $0 $0 $0 $0
Library HVAC 170,000 170,000 0 0 0 0 0
Animal Shelter 400,000 400,000 0 0 0 0 0
Capital Project Expenditures $4,570,000 $570,000 $4,000,000 $0 $0 $0 $0

Revenue Sources 6-Year Total 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020
General Fund $570,000 $570,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
Grants 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Developer Contributions 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Bond Levy Proceeds - Voter Approved 4,000,000 0 4,000,000 0 0 0 0
Total Available Revenue $4,570,000 $570,000 $4,000,000 $0 $0 $0 $0

Total Revenues less Total Capital Expe $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

Notes:
$4,000,000 fire station funded by bond proceeds

Projects Total Project 
Costs

ATTACHMENT 3110



DRAFTP:\PROJECTS\City Projects\CIP GS51-07-15 (til superseded XFR)\2016-2021 CIP\Copy of CIP tables 2016-2021 rev3a.xlsx

Table 4.9 Marina (Enterprise Funded)

2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021

Capital Project Expenditures $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
Total Expenditures $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

Revenue Sources 6-Year Totals 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021
Contributions from Beginning Fund Balance

Marina (Fund  ) $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
Cumulative Reserve (Fund  ) 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Rates 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Loans 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Grants 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Developer Contributions 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Total Available Revenue $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

$0 $0 $0 $0 $0
Total Revenues less Total Capital Expenditures $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

Total Project 
CostsProjects

ATTACHMENT 3111



2016  

Comprehensive Plan 

Update 

 

 

 

Public Meeting 

 

112



  

 
FROM: Cac Kamak, AICP  

Senior Planner 
   
 
Discussion on the 2016 update to the City’s Comprehensive Plan is an ongoing agenda item at 
the Planning Commission.  Staff continues to prepare draft documents that will bring together 
the ideas, information and policies that have been discussed in the last few years.  At this 
meeting, staff will discuss the structure of the Comprehensive Plan and how it relates to other 
plans that have been adopted.  Staff will continue to discuss the update with the Planning 
Commission as this moves forward. 

Date: October 27, 2015 
Subject: 2016 Comprehensive Plan 

Major Update  

 

City of Oak Harbor 
Planning Commission Report 
 
 

113


	AGENDA - October 27, 2015
	MINUTES - September 22, 2015
	2015 ComprehensivePlan Amendments
	2016 Comprehensive PlanMajor Update



